
City Council Agenda              August 22, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
AGENDA 

MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matt Beekman  
 
ROLL CALL:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
    Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
    Councilmember Jill Silva 
    Councilmember George Carr 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 
    
FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association   

 

 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Members of the audience may address the City Council on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the 
record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their presentation. 
Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the City Council cannot take action on matters 
not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, 
items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by 
completing and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained 
from the City Clerk. 
 
  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the City Council are requested to complete one of 
the forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City 
Clerk. Filling out the card is voluntary.  
 



City Council Agenda              August 22, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  NONE. 
    
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the 
City Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 8, 2016. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  

 
3.3:  Approval of the Formal Response to the Stanislaus County Civil Grand 

Jury Stanislaus County Building Study – Report 16-15 GJ. 
 
3.4: Approval of the Request by the Hughson Concerts Series Committee to 

Have Alcohol at Scheduled Events in Downtown Hughson on Thursday, 
September 15, 2016 and at Starn Park on Saturday, September 17, 2016. 

 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:    
 

4.1: Approval to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-29, Appointing a City Treasurer for 
the City of Hughson. 

 
4.2: Consider the Request by the Hughson Fire Protection District for One-

Time Funding to Assist with Emergency Dispatch Costs for Fire for Fiscal 
Year 2016-2017.  

 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:   NONE. 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE:  
 

7.1:  Planning Commission Minutes August 16, 2016. 
     
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
City Manager:       
 
City Clerk: 
 



City Council Agenda              August 22, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

Community Development Director: 
  
Director of Finance: 
 
Police Services:  
   
City Attorney: 
 

8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  
 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
 

May 5 – Sept 29  Hughson Farmers’ Market (Thursday), 5:00 P.M. – 9:00 P.M. 
September 5  Labor Day Holiday – City Hall Closed 

September 12  City Council Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 7:00 P.M. 
Sept 15 and Sept 17  Hughson Concert Series, 5:00 P.M. 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 

DATE:     August 18, 2016 TIME:                    5:00 pm     

NAME:      Susana Diaz  TITLE:                    Deputy City Clerk  
         
 

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing(s) described in this Agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at or prior to, the public hearing(s).           

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you need 
assistance to attend or participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. 
Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable 
accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the meeting.  



City Council Agenda              August 22, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

 
Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  

 
Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official 
language for the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures 
Section 185, which requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is 
hereby given that all proceedings before the City of Hughson City Council shall be in English 
and anyone wishing to address the Council is required to have a translator present who will take 
an oath to make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English 
language. 
 
 
General Information: The Hughson City Council meets in the Council Chambers on 

the second and fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise noticed.  

 
Council Agendas: The City Council agenda is now available for public review at 

the City’s website at www.hughson.org  and City Clerk's Office, 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the 
scheduled meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be 
purchased for a nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054 

http://www.hughson.org/


Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

 

  
Meeting Date: August 8, 2016
Subject: Approval of the City Council Minutes 
Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 8, 2016 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The draft minutes of the August 8, 2016 meeting are prepared for the Council’s review.  
   
 

 

  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.1 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR    



City Council Minutes                August 8, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
MINUTES 

MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
   Councilmember George Carr 

    Councilmember Harold Hill 
   Councilmember Jill Silva  
 
Absent:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
Staff Present: Raul L. Mendez, City Manager  
   Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 
   Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney 
   Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
   Larry Seymour, Chief of Police Services 
   Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director  
   Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
   Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent 
    
     

FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association 

 
 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
 No Public Comments. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Minutes                August 8, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS:   NONE. 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the 
City Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 25, 2016. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  

 
3.3: Accept the resignation of Planning Commissioner Karen Minyard and 

advertise the current Planning Commission Vacancy. 
 

3.4: Approve advertising a Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission 
vacancy to allow interested parties to apply from within the City’s postal 
code area. 

 
CARR/HILL 4-0 (BEEKMAN – ABSENT) motion passes to approve the Consent 
Calendar as presented.  
 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

6.1:  Adopt Resolution No. 2016-28, a Resolution of the City Council of the City 
of Hughson accepting the Tully Road Reconstruction Project 
Improvements and authorizing the City Clerk to File a Notice of 
Completion. 

 
Director French presented the staff report on this item. Thomas Reeves, 
representative of PG&E, was available to answer questions.  
 
CARR/SILVA 4-0 (BEEKMAN – ABSENT) motion passes to approve the Resolution 
No. 2016-28, approving the Tully Road Reconstruction Project Improvements and 
authorizing the City Clerk to File a Notice of Completion. 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE.  
    
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 



City Council Minutes                August 8, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

 
City Manager:   City Manager Mendez updated 

Council on the National Night Out 
festivities. He reminded Council of 
the upcoming events listed on the 
agenda.  

 
City Clerk: Deputy City Clerk Diaz demonstrated 

the new video recording system to be 
used to record and post future 
council meetings on the City’s 
website . 

 
Community Development Director: Director French updated the 

Council on the Hatch Road and 
Santa Fe Avenue project. He 
notified Council that Agave 
Azul will open their newly 
remodeled restaurant this 
week. He informed Council that 
staff is working with the Police 
Chief to properly notify the 
public of the pending speed 
limit changes within the City. 

  
Director of Finance: Director Esenwein reminded Council that 

the City Treasurer position application is 
closing on August 19, 2016.   

 
Police Services: Chief Seymour provided the City Council 

with the latest Crime Statistic Report.  He 
announced that he will be introducing the 
new police staff at a subsequent Council 
meeting. He informed Council that the 
National Night Out festivities have been 
posted on Facebook. 

 
City Attorney: Reported that he was glad to be back from 

vacation.  
 

8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

Councilmember Carr:   None.  
 
Councilmember Silva made note of the upcoming StanCOG Special Meeting on 
the Transportation Sales Tax Measure. Councilmember Silva was contacted by a 



City Council Minutes                August 8, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

concerned citizen regarding a component of the City’s water system. 
Councilmember Silva was contacted by a citizen inquiring about the school bond 
on the November ballot. 
 
Councilmember Hill said that he enjoyed the National Night Out festivities. He 
plans on attending the upcoming 2+2 Fire District Committee meeting. 
Councilmember Hill will also attend the upcoming StanCog Special Meeting. 
 
Councilmember Young:   None. 
 

8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

Mayor Beekman absent. 
  
 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
 
10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:   NONE.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
YOUNG/CARR 4-0 (BEEKMAN – ABSENT) motion passes to adjourn the meeting 
at 7:26 P.M. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor Pro Tem  

 
 
 
____________________________________________  
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
  



 

 

  
Meeting Date: August 22, 2016 
Subject: Approval of Warrants Register 
Enclosure: Warrants Register 
Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Director of Finance  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Warrants Register as presented.     
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The warrants register presented to the City Council is a listing of all expenditures 
paid from August 12, 2016 through August 17, 2016. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There are reductions in various funds for payment of expenses. 
 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.2 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 









 
 

 

  
 
Meeting Date: August 22, 2016 
Subject: Approval of the Formal Response to the Stanislaus 

County Civil Grand Jury Stanislaus County Building 
Study – Report 16-15 GJ  

Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 
   Dan Schroeder, City Attorney  
 
Approved By: _____________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
1. Approve the formal response to the Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury Stanislaus 

County Building Study – Report 16-15 GJ  
 

2. Authorize the Mayor Pro Tem to sign the formal response and submit on behalf of the 
City of Hughson. 

 
Background and Overview: 
 
On June 8, 2016, the City of Hughson received a formal correspondence, via Mayor 
Beekman, regarding the Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury Building Study Report 16-15 
GJ. The City of Hughson was advised to submit a response to the findings and 
recommendations to the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court, the Honorable Marie 
Sovey Silveira in both hard copy and an electronic copy.  
 
The California Penal Code §933 (c) specifies both the deadline by which responses shall 
be made to the Civil Grand Jury Final Report recommendations, and the required content 
of those responses.  The following apply to the City of Hughson. 
 
Deadline for Responses 
 
All agencies are directed to respond to the Presiding Judge of the Stanislaus County 
Superior Court, 
 
 Not later than 90 days after the Civil Grand Jury submits a final report on the 

operations of a public agency, the governing body of that agency shall respond to 
the findings and recommendations pertaining to the operations of that agency. 

 Not later than 60 days after the Civil Grand Jury submits a final report on the 
operation of a County agency, the elected head governing the agency shall 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.3 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



respond to the findings and recommendations pertaining to the operations of their 
agency. 

 Information copies of responses pertaining to matters under the control of a county 
officer or agency are to be sent to the Board of Supervisors. 

 A copy of all responses to the Civil Grand Jury reports shall be placed on file with 
the clerk of the public agency and the Office of the County Clerk, or the city clerk 
when applicable. 

 One copy shall be placed on file with the applicable Civil Grand Jury by, and in the 
control of, the currently impaneled Grand Jury, where it shall be maintained for a 
minimum of five years. 

 
Content of Responses 
 
 The respondent agrees with the finding. 
 The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with finding and shall include an 

explanation. 
 The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the 

implemented action. 
 The recommendation has not been implemented, but will be implemented in the 

future, with a time frame for implementation. 
 The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope 

and parameters of an analysis or study, and a time frame if it is to be implemented 
later. 

 The recommendation will not be implemented because it is unwarranted or 
unreasonable, with supportive explanation. 

 
Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury Final Report – 16-15 GJ - Excerpts 
 
The full report is attached for reference.  Below are excerpts to share the highlights. 
 
The 2015-2016 Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury undertook a project to determine if city-
owned properties were being used to their highest and best practices. The Stanislaus 
County Civil Grand Jury (SCCGJ) requested a summary of all properties owned by each 
city in the county to determine if they were being used appropriately.  
 
During the course of the investigation, it was clear that there is a wide range of tools used 
to account for city-owned properties, some of which are easier for the public to access and 
use than others. Some lists were so labor intensive it was difficult to figure out where the 
property was located, what is was, and how it is being utilized. The SCCGJ decided to 
focus its efforts on giving recommendations to the cities for accounting for properties to 
make it easier for the public and help the cities to know what they own and what is being 
used. 
 
The following are the key findings and recommendations that pertained to the incorporated 
cities within the Stanislaus County and required a response.  Those that do not directly 
pertain to the City of Hughson but to other local agencies are indicated as such in the 
formal response and deferred accordingly. 
 

Stanislaus County Building Study 
 
F1  The City of Waterford is the only city to use the Central San Joaquin 
Valley Risk Management Authority Building Detail Report. This report has a 
complete summary of each property, including date built or acquired, address, 



type of construction, services, features, valuations, and conclusions. In 
addition, each property has a current photo. Other cities would benefit from 
using the same system to list their inventory. 
 
R1 The Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury recommends that all cities 
in Stanislaus County should consider using the Central San Joaquin Valley 
Risk Management Authority Building Report to efficiently account for and 
report to the public all city-owned properties. 

 
The City of Hughson agrees with the above findings and recommendations.  
As a member agency of the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management 
Authority, the City of Hughson also has access to the Central San Joaquin 
Valley Risk Management Authority Building Detail Report (Attachment A) for 
use as recommended by the Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the City of Hughson’s formal response to the 
Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury. 

 
 
 
 

















OFFICE OF THE MAYOR PRO TEM 
7018 Pine Street • P.O. Box 9 
Hughson, CA 95326         Jeramy Young 
(209) 883-4054   Fax (209) 883-2638       Mayor Pro Tem 
www.hughson.org                        jyoung@hughson.org   
 

             

 
 

 
August 22, 2016 
 
 
 
Honorable Marie Sovey Silveira 
Presiding Judge of the Superior Court 
P.O. Box 3488 
Modesto, CA  95353 
 
Dear Honorable Silveira: 
 
RE:  Response to the Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury’s Letter dated June 8, 2016. 
 
This letter is in response to the correspondence received of the following section of the Civil 
Grand Jury final report: 
 

• 16-15 GJ – 2015-2016 Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury Stanislaus County Building 
Study. 

 
City staff has reviewed the referred sections of the Civil Grand Jury final report and presented 
its findings and recommendations to the Hughson City Council on August 22, 2016 regarding 
the Stanislaus County Building Study.  The following is the Hughson City Council’s response 
based on this analysis and submitted as required to the Civil Grand Jury’s Findings (F1) and 
Recommendations (R1).   
 
Stanislaus County Building Study 
 
F1  The City of Waterford is the only city to use the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk 
Management Authority Building Detail Report. This report has a complete summary of each 
property, including date built or acquired, address, type of construction, services, features, 
valuations, and conclusions. In addition, each property has a current photo. Other cities would 
benefit from using the same system to list their inventory. 
 
R1 The Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury recommends that all cities in Stanislaus 
County should consider using the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority 
Building Report to efficiently account for and report to the public all city-owned properties.  

 
City Response: 
 
The City of Hughson agrees with F1 and R1.  As a member agency of the Central Valley 
Risk Management Authority, the City of Hughson also has access to the Central San 

http://www.hughson.org/
mailto:jyoung@hughson.org


OFFICE OF THE MAYOR PRO TEM 
7018 Pine Street • P.O. Box 9 
Hughson, CA 95326         Jeramy Young 
(209) 883-4054   Fax (209) 883-2638       Mayor Pro Tem 
www.hughson.org                        jyoung@hughson.org   
 

             

Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority Building Detail Report (Attachment A) for 
use as recommended by the Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury.   

 
Should you have any questions regarding this correspondence, please feel free to contact me 
directly. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jeramy Young 
Mayor Pro Tem 
City of Hughson 

http://www.hughson.org/
mailto:jyoung@hughson.org


CITY OF HUGHSON – ATTACHMENT A 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt 
Authority  

Building Detail Report 
 

 

 
 
 
 
  

City of Hughson Building Detail Report. This report has a complete summary of each City of Hughson property, including date built or acquired, address, type of 
construction, services, features, valuations, and conclusions. 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  1 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 01 CITY HALL 
Building: 01 CITY HALL / POLICE DEPARTMENT 

7018 PINE STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1940 / 1940 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 5,760 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GCH CITY HALL 

Frame Type: WD WOOD 
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59771 -120.86462 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WOOD SIDING ON STUDS, METAL SIDING/STUDS 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

METAL, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), COMPLEX 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
CARPETING, CERAMIC TILE 
ACOUSTICAL, DRYWALL 
DRYWALL/STUDS, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0U6OP5 

FEATURES 
COVERED ENTRANCE WAY 
CCTV 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,065,100 

0 

1,065,100 
 

343,500 
HEATING - ROOF TOP 
AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 
AIR CONDITIONING - ROOF TOP 

 

NOTES 
2007 - NEW ROOF 

BUILT-INS (CABINETS, LOCKERS, BOOKCASES)  
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
1,065,100 

343,500 

1,408,600 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  2 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 01 CITY HALL 
Building: 23 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE - MODULAR 

7012 PINE STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2007 / 2007 Inspection Date: 07/13/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 2,000 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: SPC MODULAR 

Frame Type: WD WOOD 
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59778 -120.86536 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WOOD SIDING ON STUDS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

METAL, 
FLAT, FLAT 
RAISED WOOD FOUNDATION, 
CARPETING, VINYL 
ACOUSTICAL, 
DRYWALL/STUDS, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _2BK0O6Y0D 

FEATURES 
BUILT-INS (CABINETS, LOCKERS, BOOKCASES) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

310,000 

0 

310,000 
 

56,000 
HEATING/AIR CONDITIONING (HEAT PUMP) 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
310,000 

56,000 

366,000 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  3 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 01 CITY HALL 
Building: 24 GARBAGE ENCLOSURE 

7012 PINE STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2007 / 2007 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 800 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GSB3 ENCLOSURE 

Frame Type: WD WOOD 
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59764 -120.86494 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: VINYL FENCING, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _2BK0OA1ED 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6,500 

0 

6,500 
 

0 
 

6,500 

0 

6,500 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  4 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05A ADMINISTATION BUILDING WITH LAB 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1987 / 1987 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 1,443 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWAD    WASTE - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

Frame Type: WD WOOD 
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62214 -120-86951 

Fire Protection:    INTRUSION SYSTEM 
FIRE ALARM - AUTOMATIC 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: STUCCO ON STUDS, 

FIRE ALARM - MANUAL 

Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

CLAY TILE, 
HIGH (9/12 - 12/12), SHED 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
CERAMIC TILE, VINYL 
DRYWALL, 
CONCRETE BLOCK, DRYWALL/STUDS 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0U6OPW 

FEATURES 

BUILT-INS (CABINETS, LOCKERS, BOOKCASES) 
COVERED ENTRANCE WAY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

432,900 

0 

432,900 
 

153,300 
HEATING/AIR CONDITIONING (HEAT PUMP) CCTV 

SCADA 
 
 

NOTES 
RATED CAPACITY 2 MGD 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 432,900 
Contents Value: 153,300 
Total Insurable Value: 586,200 

 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  5 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05B LAB 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 1,420 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWAD    WASTE - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62222 -120.8695 

Fire Protection:    INTRUSION SYSTEM 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING ON GIRTS, 

FIRE ALARM - AUTOMATIC 

Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
CERAMIC TILE, VINYL 
ACOUSTICAL, 
CONCRETE BLOCK, DRYWALL/STUDS 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
BUILT-INS (CABINETS, LOCKERS, BOOKCASES) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

271,000 

0 

271,000 
 

50,900 
HEATING/AIR CONDITIONING (HEAT PUMP) 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
271,000 

50,900 

321,900 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  6 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05C ELECTRICAL BUILDING NO. 1 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 420 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCB    WASTE - ELECTRICAL BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62242 -120.87280 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: FIBERGLASS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 

FIBERGLASS, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
SCADA 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102,700 

0 

102,700 

AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

MCC Contents Value: 
 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

220,000 
 

102,700 

220,000 

322,700 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  7 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05D ELECTRICAL BUILDING NO. 2 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 420 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCB    WASTE - ELECTRICAL BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622423 -120.871853 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: FIBERGLASS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 

FIBERGLASS, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
SCADA 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102,700 

0 

102,700 

AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

MCC Contents Value: 
 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

152,500 
 

102,700 

152,500 

255,200 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  8 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05E GENERATOR 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 468 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTMV GENERATOR 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622089 -120.870595 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

METAL, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

284,000 

0 

284,000 
ELECTRICAL 800 KW W/ 3000 GALLON DIESEL TANK 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Contents Value: 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
0 

 
284,000 

0 

284,000 



Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  9 

Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05F INFLUENT METER BOX 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/13/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 280 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWM WASTE - METER VAULT 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.621794 -120.870590 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
, 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
RAILINGS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110,900 

0 

110,900 
 

0 
 

110,900 

0 

110,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  10 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05G HEADWORKS 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 516 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWH WASTE - HEADWORKS BUILDING 

Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 
ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.621987 -120.870386 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: POURED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
, 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
, 
NONE, 
REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

RAILINGS/GRATING 
BIOFILTER 
AIR SCRUBBER 
SAMPLER 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

370,900 

0 

370,900 
 

0 
 

370,900 

0 

370,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  11 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05H OXIDATION DITCH 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 36,879 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: OXB OXIDATION BASIN 

Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 
ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622352 -120.871588 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
, 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

RAILINGS 
GRATING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9,147,900 

0 

9,147,900 
 

0 
 

9,147,900 

0 

9,147,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  12 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05I SECONDARY CLARIFIER NO. 1 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/13/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 4,418 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWSC    WASTE - SECONDARY CLARIFIER 

Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 
ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622352 -120.873145 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

RAILINGS 
GRATING 
UV PROTECTED WEIRS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,156,500 

0 

1,156,500 
 

0 
 

1,156,500 

0 

1,156,500 

DIAMETER = 75 FT EACH 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  13 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05J SECONDARY CLARIFIER NO. 2 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/13/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 4,418 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWSC    WASTE - SECONDARY CLARIFIER 

Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 
ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62246 -120.87238 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

RAILINGS 
GRATING 
UV PROTECTED WEIRS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,156,500 

0 

1,156,500 
 

0 
 

1,156,500 

0 

1,156,500 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  14 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05K AERATOR VFD BUILDING 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/13/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 120 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCB    WASTE - AERATOR BUILDING 
Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 

ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622463 -120.870595 

Fire Protection:    NOT APPLICABLE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: FIBERGLASS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

FIBERGLASS, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
MCC 
VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26,700 

0 

26,700 
 

92,000 
AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
26,700 

92,000 

118,700 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  15 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05L RAS PUMP STATION 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 816 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWPS    WASTE - PUMP STATION 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.624404 -120.873323 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: NONE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

CONCRETE, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

FEATURES 
(3) 10 HP PUMPS 
(2) 25 HP SUMP PUMPS 
RAILINGS 
ACCESS HATCH 
GRATING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

597,000 

0 

597,000 
 

0 
 

597,000 

0 

597,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  16 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05M WAS PUMP STATION 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 816 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWPS    WASTE - PUMP STATION 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622090 -120.870500 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
, 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

FEATURES 

RAILINGS 
GRATING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

482,000 

0 

482,000 
 

0 
 

482,000 

0 

482,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  17 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05N BELT FILTER PRESS BUILDING 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 3,600 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWTB    WASTE - THICKENER BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622421 -120.872835 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING ON GIRTS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
CONCRETE BLOCK, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

RAILINGS 
GRATING 
(2) 1.5m BELT FILTER PRESS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

845,500 

0 

845,500 
 

1,356,500 
 

845,500 

1,356,500 

2,202,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  18 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05O CHEMICAL STORAGE 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 48 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCF    WASTE - CHEMICAL FEED BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622412 -120.87331 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

METAL, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3,500 

0 

3,500 
 

2,500 
AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
3,500 

2,500 

6,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  19 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05P PLANT WATER WELL 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 200 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622412 -120.873145 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: , 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

, 
, 
CONCRETE FOOTING FOUNDATION, 
, 
, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

(1) 9,500 GALLON PRESSURE TANK 
COMPRESSOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

109,500 

0 

109,500 
 

0 
 

109,500 

0 

109,500 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  20 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05Q EFFLUENT METER BOX 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/13/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 280 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWM WASTE - METER VAULT 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.623139 -120.873145 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
, 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
RAILINGS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110,900 

0 

110,900 
 

0 
 

110,900 

0 

110,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  21 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05R CHLORINE STORAGE 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1987 / 1987 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 540 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCC   WASTE - CHLORINE CONTACT BLDG 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62232 -120.86948 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING ON GIRTS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), SHED 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
3-TON HOIST 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84,500 

0 

84,500 
 

28,600 
 

84,500 

28,600 

113,100 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  22 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05S RELAY BUILDING 

6700 LEEDON ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1987 / 1987 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 540 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCB    WASTE - ELECTRICAL BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62219 -120.86928 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING ON GIRTS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), SHED 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132,100 

0 

132,100 

AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

Contents Value: 
 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

40,700 
 

132,100 

40,700 

172,800 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  23 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05T LARGE SHOP 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1987 / 1987 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 1,800 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GSB SHOP BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62135 -120.86944 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING ON GIRTS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0UROQJ 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

164,000 

0 

164,000 
 

95,200 
 

164,000 

95,200 

259,200 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  24 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05U SMALL SHOP 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1987 / 1987 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 785 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GSB SHOP BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.62192 -120.8695 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING ON GIRTS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0U6OQM 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95,400 

0 

95,400 
 

41,500 
 

95,400 

41,500 

136,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  25 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 02 WATER WASTE TREATMENT PLANT 
Building: 05V HERBICIDE STORAGE 

6700 LEEDOM ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2012 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 48 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWCF    WASTE - CHEMICAL FEED BUILDING 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.622421 -120.872835 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

METAL, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3,500 

0 

3,500 
 

2,500 
AIR CONDITIONING - UNIT 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
3,500 

2,500 

6,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  26 

 

 

 

Entity: 
Site: 

0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
03 CORPORATE YARD 

 

Building: 02A PUBLIC WORKS 

 2301 FIRST STREET 

 HUGHSON, CA 95326 
Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired: 1993 / 1993 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 2,166 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet:  
Flood Zone: 
Occupancy: 

X Adds/Renovations: 
GPWG PUBLIC WORKS GARAGE 

NO 

Frame Type: WD WOOD  
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE  
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59765 -120.86919 

Fire Protection: NONE  
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING/STUDS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 
UNIT HEATERS 

ASPHALT SHINGLES, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, VINYL 
DRYWALL, 
DRYWALL/STUDS, WOOD PANELING ON STUDS 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0U6OP9 

FEATURES 

BUILT-INS (CABINETS, LOCKERS, BOOKCASES) 
AUTOMOTIVE LIFTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

209,300 

0 

209,300 
 

121,900 

AIR CONDITIONING - EVAPORATIVE COOLER 
 
 

NOTES 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

209,300 
121,900 

331,200 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  27 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 03 CORPORATE YARD 
Building: 02E ELEVATED WATER TANK - 40,000 GALLONS 

2301 FIRST STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1914 / 1914 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 0 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: TKE1 WATER TANK - ELEVATED 40,000 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59742 -120.86918 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: STEEL, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), COMPLEX 
CONCRETE FOOTING FOUNDATION, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _07Z0KX0PL 

FEATURES 

40,000 GALLONS 
NOT IN USE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

301,200 

0 

301,200 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 
2013 - REFURBISHED AS A LANDMARK 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

301,200 

0 

301,200 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  28 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 04 WATER WELL #8 
Building: 27 WATER WELL #8 

1537 EUCLID AVENUE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2011 / 2011 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 896 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 

Frame Type: JM JOISTED MASONRY 
ISO Class: 2 JOISTED MASONRY 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60760 -120.85336 

Fire Protection:    INTRUSION SYSTEM 
FIRE ALARM - AUTOMATIC 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WOOD SIDING ON STUDS, 

FIRE ALARM - MANUAL 

Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

ASPHALT SHINGLES, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
CONCRETE BLOCK, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _3EV0PPTV9 

FEATURES 

(1) 150 HP PUMP 
MCC 
SKYLIGHT 
SCADA 
GENERATOR - 275 KW 
(2) ) PRESSURE 

TANKS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

804,900 

0 

804,900 
 

0 
 

804,900 

0 

804,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  29 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 04 WATER WELL #8 
Building: 28 BACKWASH TANK - 50,000 GALLONS 

1537 EUCLID AVENUE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2011 / 2011 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 0 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: TKG4 WATER TANK - GROUND 50,000 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60751 -120.85347 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WELDED STEEL, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _3EV0PU17M 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

202,000 

0 

202,000 
 

0 
 

202,000 

0 

202,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  30 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 05 WATER WELL #3 
Building: 11 WATER WELL #3 

TULLY ROAD & FOX ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1975 / 1975 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 25 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60343 -120.86981 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE FOOTING FOUNDATION, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _0720KZ19A 

FEATURES 
(1) 150 HP PUMP 
GENERATOR 
SCADA 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

248,500 

0 

248,500 
 

0 
 

248,500 

0 

248,500 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  31 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 06 STARN PARK 
Building: 16 PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 

1717 TULLY ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2005 / 2005 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 2,820 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: NA PLAYGROUND 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.603675 -120.869839 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: NONE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE FOOTING FOUNDATION, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _1GG0W69C8 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155,000 

0 

155,000 
 

0 
 

155,000 

0 

155,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  32 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 06 STARN PARK 
Building: 18 CONCESSION STAND / RESTROOM 

1717 TULLY ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2006 / 2006 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 607 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GPRR PARK RESTROOM 
Frame Type: JM JOISTED MASONRY 

ISO Class: 2 JOISTED MASONRY 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60381 -120.86991 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: DECORATIVE CONCRETE BLOCK, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
FIBERBOARD, 
CONCRETE BLOCK, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _1QU0XO1XXL 

FEATURES 

COVERED ENTRANCE WAY 
CCTV 
SKYLIGHTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

299,400 

0 

299,400 
 

0 
 

299,400 

0 

299,400 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  33 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 06 STARN PARK 
Building: 25 (2) THEMO PLASTIC SHADE STRUCTURES 

1717 TULLY ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2007 / 2007 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 850 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GPSO PARK SHELTER - OPEN 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60384 -120.87931 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: NONE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

THERMO PLASTIC, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), HYPERBOLIC 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _2BK0OCDPI 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29,800 

0 

29,800 
 

0 
 

29,800 

0 

29,800 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  34 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 07 WATER WELL #7 
Building: 19 WATER WELL #7 

FOX ROAD & 7TH STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2006 / 2006 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 100 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 

Frame Type: WD WOOD 
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.6021002 -120.860229 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WOOD SIDING ON STUDS, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

ASPHALT SHINGLES, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _1QU0XRCD2 

FEATURES 

(1) 200 HP PUMP 
GENERATOR 
PRESSURE TANK 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

586,300 

0 

586,300 
 

0 
 

586,300 

0 

586,300 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  35 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 08 SENIOR CENTER 
Building: 12 SENIOR CENTER 

2307 4TH STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1989 / 1989 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 6,403 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GRC SENIOR CENTER 

Frame Type: WD WOOD 
ISO Class: 1 FRAME/COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59742 -120.86444 

Fire Protection:    FIRE ALARM - AUTOMATIC 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WOOD SIDING ON STUDS, STUCCO ON STUDS, STONE 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

ASPHALT SHINGLES, 
MEDIUM (5/12 - 8/12), GABLE 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
VINYL, CERAMIC TILE 
DRYWALL, 
DRYWALL/STUDS, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _07Z0L8XR2 

FEATURES 
BUILT-INS (CABINETS, BOOKCASES) 
COVERED ENTRANCE WAY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,250,800 

0 

1,250,800 
 

138,900 
HEATING/AIR CONDITIONING (HEAT PUMP) 
AIR CONDITIONING - EVAPORATIVE COOLER 

 
 

NOTES 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 1,250,800 
Contents Value: 138,900 

Total Insurable Value: 1,389,700 
 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  36 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 09 WATER WELL #6 
Building: 17 WATER WELL #6 

LOCUST AVENUE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2004 / 2004 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 25 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59846 -120.85354 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _1GGOW8NBA 

FEATURES 

(1) 200 HP PUMP 
MCC 
SCADA 
PRESSURE TANK 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

348,700 

0 

348,700 
 

0 
 

348,700 

0 

348,700 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  37 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 09 WATER WELL #6 
Building: 20 GENERATOR 

LOCUST AVENUE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2004 / 2004 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 0 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: NA GENERATOR 

Frame Type: PES PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59846 -120.85354 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: , 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

, 
, 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
, 
, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _1QU0XSEFA 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

165,900 

0 

165,900 
ELECTRICAL 275 KW GENERATOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

 
Contents Value: 

 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
0 

 
165,900 

0 

165,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  38 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 10 WATER WELL #4 
Building: 08 WATER WELL #4 

CHARLES & ELM STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1975 / 1975 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 25 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59563 -120.86512 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _S1U0VPLVV 

FEATURES 

(1) 100 HP PUMP 
SCADA 
MCC 
GENERATOR - 150 KW 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

323,400 

0 

323,400 
 

0 
 

323,400 

0 

323,400 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  39 

 

 

 

Entity: 
Site: 

0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
12 HATCH ROAD LIFT STATION 

 

Building: 06 SEWAGE LIFT STATION 

 HATCH ROAD 

 HUGHSON, CA 95326 
Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired: 1975 / 2012 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 600 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet:  
Flood Zone: 
Occupancy: 

X Adds/Renovations: 
WWPS    WASTE - PUMP STATION 

NO 

Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE  
ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE  
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60955 -120.87043 

Fire Protection: NONE  
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: POURED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

CONCRETE, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0U6OQQ 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

377,900 

0 

377,900 
 

0 
 

377,900 

0 

377,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  40 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 12 HATCH ROAD LIFT STATION 
Building: 06A ELECTRICAL BUILDING 

HATCH & TULLY ROAD 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1975 / 1975 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 375 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWPS    ELECTRICAL BUILDING 
Frame Type: JM JOISTED MASONRY 

ISO Class: 2 JOISTED MASONRY 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60957 -120.87061 

Fire Protection:    FIRE ALARM - MANUAL 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: DECORATIVE CONCRETE BLOCK, 

FIRE ALARM - AUTOMATIC 

Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

BUILT-UP SMOOTH, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
DRYWALL, 
CONCRETE BLOCK, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 
MCC 
GENERATOR - 125 KW 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

340,900 

0 

340,900 
 

0 
 

340,900 

0 

340,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  41 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 14 WATER WELL #10 
Building: 03 STORAGE BUILDING 

FOX ROAD & SEVENTH STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1974 / 1974 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
07/31/2014 

Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 264 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GPWS PUBLIC WORKS SHED 
Frame Type: JM JOISTED MASONRY 

ISO Class: 2 JOISTED MASONRY 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60256 -120.86054 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: METAL SIDING/STUDS, CONCRETE BLOCK 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 

METAL, 
LOW (1/12 - 4/12), SHED 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _RVP0U6OPG 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24,000 

0 

24,000 
 

10,000 

 
 
 
 

NOTES 
WELL #7 NOW USED AS STORAGE BUILDING 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

24,000 

10,000 

34,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  42 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 15 WATER STORAGE TANK 
Building: 22 WATER TANK - 750,000 GALLONS 

7TH AND CHARLES STREET 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2007 / 2007 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 0 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: TKG7 WATER TANK - GROUND 750,000 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.60220 -120.86442 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: WELDED STEEL, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

METAL, 
FLAT, FLAT 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _2BK0O4FLM 

FEATURES 
(2) 40 HP PRESSURE PUMPS 
(2) 25 HP PRESSURE PUMPS 
DIAMETER - 65' 
HEIGHT - 31' 
MCC 
GENERATOR - 350 KW 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,438,900 

0 

1,438,900 
 

0 
 

1,438,900 

0 

1,438,900 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  43 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 16 ANDREW FONTANA PARK 
Building: 26 SHADE SHELTERS 1,2,3,4 

2114 THOMAS TAYLOR DRIVE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2011 / 2011 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 900 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: GPSO PARK SHELTER - OPEN 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59910 -120.85502 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: NONE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

THERMO PLASTIC, 
NONE, 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _34U0Y49C8 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56,000 

0 

56,000 
 

0 
 

56,000 

0 

56,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  44 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 16 ANDREW FONTANA PARK 
Building: 26A PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 

2114 THOMAS TAYLOR DRIVE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   2011 / 2011 Inspection Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 0 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: NA PLAYGROUND 

Frame Type: ST STEEL 
ISO Class: 3 NON COMBUSTIBLE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.599100 -120.855038 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: , 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

, 
, 
CONCRETE FOOTING FOUNDATION, 
, 
, 
, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEATURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20,000 

0 

20,000 
 

0 
 

20,000 

0 

20,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  45 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 17 WATER WELL #5 
Building: 09 WATER WELL #5 

TULLY ROAD & WHITEMORE AVENUE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1975 / 1975 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 25 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WTPS WATER - PUMPING STATION 
Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 

ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59288 -120.86974 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
, 
CONCRETE SLAB ON GROUND, 
SEALER, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _S1U0VU6XA 

FEATURES 

(1) 100 HP PUMP 
MCC 
SCADA 
GENERATOR - 175 KW 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

298,000 

0 

298,000 
 

0 
 

298,000 

0 

298,000 



Report Produced and Copyrighted in 2014 by AssetWorks 

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Mgmt Authority 
Building Detail Report 

12/23/2014 
DB02X 

As of:   08/31/2014 
Page:  46 

 

 

 

Entity: 0284 CITY OF HUGHSON 
Site: 18 TULLY SEWAGE LIFT STATION 
Building: 13 SEWAGE LIFT STATION 

TULLY ROAD & WHITEMORE AVENUE 
HUGHSON, CA 95326 

Department: 00 NOT UTILIZED 
Built / Acquired:   1995 / 1995 Inspection Date: 07/31/2014 
Nbr. of Stories: 1 Total Square Feet: 120 
Basement: NO Bsmt Square Feet: 
Flood Zone: X Adds/Renovations: NO 
Occupancy: WWLM    WASTE - LIFT STATION - MANHOLE 

Frame Type: RC REINFORCED CONCRETE 
ISO Class: 6 FIRE RESISTIVE 
GPS Lat & Long: 37.59454 -120.86997 

Fire Protection:    NONE 
 

GENERAL BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS 
Exterior Walls: REINFORCED CONCRETE, 
Roofing: 
Pitch & Shape: 
Foundation: 
Floor Finish: 
Ceiling Finish: 
Partitions: 
Miscellaneous: 

SERVICES 

ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTES 

NONE, 
NONE, NONE 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
NONE, 
Earthquake Code - G, Record Key - _09C0SPIUG 

FEATURES 
(2) 25 HP SUBMERSIBLE PUMPS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION CONCLUSIONS 

Replacement Cost New: 
Exclusion Amount: 
Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 

Contents Value: 

Replacement Cost Less Exclusions: 
Contents Value: 
Total Insurable Value: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81,000 

0 

81,000 
 

0 
 

81,000 

0 

81,000 



 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: August 22, 2016 
Subject: Approval of the Request by the Hughson Concerts Series 

Committee to Have Alcohol at Scheduled Events in 
Downtown Hughson on Thursday, September 15, 2016 
and at Starn Park on Saturday, September 17, 2016 

Presented By:  Raul Mendez, City Manager  
 
Approved: _____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the request by the Hughson Concerts Series Committee to have alcohol 
at scheduled events in Downtown Hughson on Thursday, September 15, 2016 and 
at Starn Park on Saturday, September 17, 2016. 
 
Background:  
 
Section 9.24.020 of the Municipal Code (Drinking and possession – Public areas) 
states that “It is unlawful for any person to drink any alcoholic beverage or to 
possess any can, bottle or other receptacle containing any alcoholic beverage 
which has been opened, or a seal broken, or the contents of which have been 
partially removed, on any public sidewalk, alley, street or highway, or in any city-
owned park or other city-owned public place, unless the consumption of alcoholic 
beverages in such public place or places has been authorized by the city council. 
This section shall not be deemed to make punishable any such act or acts which 
are prohibited by the California Vehicle Code or by any other law of the state. (Ord. 
86-01 § 1, 1986).” 
 
The Hughson Concerts Series Committee has requested that the City Council 
authorize alcohol at two upcoming public events on Thursday, September 15, 2016 
from 6:30pm – 8:30pm and Saturday, September 17, 2016 from 5:00pm – 9:30 
pm.  The Hughson Concerts Series Committee is comprised of representatives 
from the City of Hughson, Hughson Police Services, Hughson Chamber of 
Commerce, Hughson Family Resources Center and Citizens for a Healthy 
Community. 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.4 
SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 



History of the Hughson Concerts Series 
 
The Hughson Concert Series is a collaborative effort comprised of various groups 
and members of the Hughson community that has formed a committee devised to 
unite Hughson residents through the appreciation of locally talented artists and 
musicians. 
 
In 2014, the Hughson Concerts Series was coined the “Hughson Concerts at the 
Park” event that culminated over two Saturdays in June and July held at Lebright 
Fields.  The event that featured a variety of local musical artists and art and food 
vendors, drew several hundred attendees.  In 2015, the Hughson Concerts Series 
moved to Downtown Hughson (Charles Street/Hughson Avenue) during the month 
of June over three consecutive Saturdays.  In an effort to feature local downtown 
businesses, the event did not incorporate food vendors and showcased musical 
artists (amateur and professionals).  The “Hughson Concerts in the Downtown” 
concluded with a final show during the Hughson Fire Protection District Centennial 
Celebration.   
 
Hughson Concerts Series 2016 Plan 
 
The Hughson Concerts Series is still in its infancy and the Planning Committee 
continues to learn and customize the event based on prior experience to best meet 
local expectation.  For this year, the Planning Committee decided to continue to 
focus on the downtown but also provide an event that had a traditional “Concerts in 
the Park” feel.  Furthermore, the Planning Committee decided to link the Hughson 
Concerts Series with the Hughson Farmers Market to use it as the launching pad 
for this year in terms of promotion and outreach.  Lastly, because of the move of 
the Hughson Fruit and Nut Festival to the spring, the Planning Committee took 
advantage of the opening in September (to minimize conflicting with other local 
events) and the cooler weather. 
 
The Hughson Concerts Series will launch during the current Hughson Farmers’ 
Market on September 15, 2016 (6:30pm – 8:30pm).  A series of musicians will be 
booked for that evening and play at designated areas on Hughson Avenue.  
Additionally, art vendors will also be available to display pieces and in partnership 
with local wineries and breweries, tasting samples will be provided for consumption 
in a designated area to individuals interested in purchasing a tasting glass/mug 
donated by the Taste of Hughson non-profit organization (surplus from their April 
annual fundraising event).  Additional vendors will be secured to complement the 
Farmers’ Market vendors which include the likes of Cap’n Coops Kettle Corn, 
Espitia Apiary, Tia Fina’s Salsa, Maria’s Mexican Seafood, Tres Bien Creamery, 
KC Shaved Ice, etc.  Local businesses will be encouraged to have specials in 
support of the night’s festivities.   
 
On Saturday, September 17, 2016, the Hughson Concerts Series will move venues 
to Starn Park (5:00pm-9:30pm) in a family friendly environment.  Attendees will be 
encouraged to bring their own food and beverages (including wine and beer) to 
Starn Park.  Local businesses will again be encouraged to have specials in support 
of the night’s festivities.  A full line-up of local musicians along with the appropriate 
sound/stage will be on hand to provide a selection of genres for concert goers.  



The Planning Committee is working with a local youth group on a possible 
fundraising opportunity at the Starn Park Concession Stand to sell food items 
(nachos, chips, soda, water, candy, etc.).  
 
Following approval by the City Council of this request, the Hughson Concerts 
Series will submit an application to the State for the appropriate licenses for the 
specified weekend.  Per the ABC application requirements, the required form must 
be received within ten (10) days of the event, but should not be submitted more 
than thirty (30) days in advance to the local office (Stockton).  Hughson Police 
Services will be on hand for both events to provide proper patrol services.  Private 
security will also be utilized as necessary.                  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the City of Hughson associated with approval of this 
item.  Costs associated with the Hughson Concerts Series are contained in the 
adopted Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 



 

 

 
 
Meeting Date:         August 22, 2016  
Subject: Approval to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-29, Appointing a 

City Treasurer for the City of Hughson 
Presented By:  Raul Mendez, City Manager  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 
 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2016-29, Appointing a City Treasurer for the City of 
Hughson. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
On April 14, 2014, the Hughson City Council appointed John Padilla to the position 
of City Treasurer.   
  
The City Treasurer is intended to provide another level of checks and balance to 
the City's financial practices.   
 
The essential function of the City Treasurer is to monitor and safeguard the City’s 
cash and investments through oversight of City processes, reporting, and 
practices. The City Treasurer ensures the City’s financial viability and that proper 
financial records and procedures are maintained in a clear, concise, and 
understandable manner.  
 
The typical duties performed by the City Treasurer include but are not limited to the 
following: 
 

• Prepare the Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested.  
• Certify that total cash on deposit and invested as is reported on the 

Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested. 
• Identify appropriate adjustments to the Treasurer's Report of Cash on 

Deposit and Invested and verify and sign the report. 
• Attest, in the Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested that the 

City has cash on hand for six months.  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
SECTION 4: UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



• Attend quarterly City Council, Finance Committee and/or other meetings 
when required to provide information on treasury or investment matters.  

• Understand, follow and review the City’s Statement of Investment Policy.  
• Work with the City Manager, Finance Director and Finance Manager on 

appropriate review of financial and investment matters, to include City 
Council agenda items.  

• Recommend appropriate investment or financial matters when warranted to 
the City Manager and/or City Council. 

• Works with the Finance Director on presentation of financial information to 
ensure that material is clear, concise, and easily understandable for Council 
and residents in their review. 

 
Graduation from a four year college and post-graduate work in accounting, 
financial or management processes is preferred but not required. Experience in an 
administrative position involving finance, investments, budgeting, or similar 
financial matters is ideal. The candidate should possess a combination of training 
and experience that provides the knowledge, skills, and abilities required to provide 
sounds advice, recommendations, and conduct appropriate reviews of City 
financial records. The candidate should also possess the ability to learn, 
understand, interpret and apply applicable Federal, State and local laws and 
regulations pertaining to investments, finance and treasury items.  
 
On June 27, 2016, the Hughson City Council accepted the resignation of John 
Padilla effectively immediately as he accepted a full time Grants and 
Communications Coordinator position with the Patterson Unified School District.  
The City Council and City Manager formally recognized Mr. Padilla for his service 
to the City of Hughson as both a Management Intern and City Treasurer.   
 
Recruitment for City Treasurer 
 
Per City Council direction, the City Treasurer position was opened for a 30 day 
period and posted with the local municipalities, city website, local universities, and 
the City newsletter. Potential applicants were asked to submit an application and 
be available to be interviewed by the City Council in a regular meeting if so 
desired.  The recruitment process closed on August 19, 2016. 
 
At of the time of the agenda posting, the City had received one application for the 
City Treasurer position.  In the interest of bringing someone on board to 
commence work including the preparation of past due Treasurer and Investment 
Portfolio Reports, this item was agendized for the City Council to consider the one 
application received and any others received by the posted deadline.  At the 
meeting, City staff will provide the background of interested candidates for 
consideration and possible action.  Reference checks will also be conducted by 
City staff prior to the meeting and interested candidates will be invited to the 
meeting to answer any questions from the City Council and/or to introduce 
themselves. 
 
 
 



 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
As established by City Council Resolution No. 87-28, the City Treasurer receives 
$100 per month, in the form of a stipend, for performance of the required duties.  
These funds are included as part of the annual budget process. 
 



CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL   

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-29 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON 
APPOINTING THE CITY TREASURER 

 
WHEREAS, the Hughson City Council hereby appoint ________ as the City 

Treasurer of the City of Hughson to perform the duties of the Office of the City 
Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, the set compensation for the City Treasurer shall be set at 
$100.00 a month pursuant to Resolution 87-28. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Hughson does hereby appoint the City Treasurer of the City of Hughson as 
provided for by the Hughson Municipal Code. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 

regularly scheduled meeting held on this 22nd day of August 2016, by the following 
roll call votes: 

 
 AYES:  

 NOES:     

 ABSTENTIONS:  

 ABSENT:  

 

                                                                        ______________________________ 
                                                                        MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

 
 



 

 

 
   
Meeting Date: August 22, 2016  
Subject: Consideration of the Request by the Hughson Fire 

Protection District for One-Time Funding to Assist with 
Emergency Dispatch Costs for Fire for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017  

Presented By:  Raul L. Mendez, City Manager   
 
Approved By: _________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Consider the request by the Hughson Fire Protection District for one-time funding 
to assist with emergency dispatch costs for fire for Fiscal Year 2016-2017.  
  
Background and Overview: 
 
Stanislaus Regional 911 (SR 911) provides emergency dispatch services to 
approximately 20 law enforcement and fire agencies throughout the community.  
SR 911 is governed by the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 
Commission, which includes elected and appointed representatives from the 
County of Stanislaus, City of Modesto and other partner agencies.  The Hughson 
City Manager sits as the representative of the other partner agencies.  In 
November 2015, the Commission took action to modify the cost allocation 
methodology used to apportion dispatch costs to all participating agencies staring 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 
 
The new cost allocation was developed after a thorough review and analysis of 
consultant recommendations developed by the Matrix Consulting Group in January 
2015. The revised cost allocation places a greater emphasis on the distribution of 
fixed post positions and the resulting service capacity assigned to each dispatch 
service area (police and fire). This new methodology is intended to align 
operational service levels with the costs charged to each participating agency. 
Based on current service levels provided through SR 911, overall costs for law 
enforcement dispatch services were reduced while costs charged to fire dispatch 
services were increased. In addition to the changes in cost allocation, the 
Commission also took action to reduce the overall approved budget by 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 
SECTION 4:  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



approximately 8% in Fiscal Year 2016-2017, which resulted in a positive benefit to 
all participating agencies.  
The County has a long-standing practice of subsidizing fire dispatch costs for most 
fire agencies receiving services through SR 911. Fire dispatch costs were 
previously funded and paid directly to SR 911 without the involvement of the fire 
agency or city (in some cases) receiving the subsidy. This accounting and billing 
practice does not provide a clear understanding of how the subsidies are 
calculated and paid on behalf of benefiting agencies. In many cases, fire agencies 
have been unaware that the County is subsidizing these costs on their behalf.  
 
The accounting and billing process with SR 911 has now changed as a result of 
the revised allocation methodology. The new process requires SR 911 to directly 
bill all participating agencies to ensure financial responsibility for SR 911 services 
is clearly communicated with each individual agency. The new billing process 
requires the County to modify current procedures to support fire dispatch subsidies 
for individual agencies.  
 
On April 26, 2016, the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors approved a new 
procedure for each benefiting agency to submit a request for fire dispatch 
subsidies directly, to support payment for the upcoming fiscal year. Subsidy 
requests must be approved by the benefiting agency's governing body. This new 
practice will ensure that annual subsidies for fire dispatch services are clearly 
communicated and understood with all benefiting agencies. For purposes of initial 
implementation of this process, requests for fire subsidies will be accepted up until 
June 30, 2016 for Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 
 
Hughson Fire Protection District Allocated Cost for Emergency Dispatch 
Services 
 
On May 23, 2016, during the approval by the Hughson City Council of the 
agreement with Stanislaus County for the provision of law enforcement services, 
City staff discussed the change in the cost allocation methodology was mentioned.  
It was stated that there was a significant decrease in emergency dispatch services 
costs for the City of Hughson as a result of a change in the cost sharing 
methodology that shifts more of the cost from police to fire agencies. At that time 
the anticipated cost for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 as shared by SR 911 for emergency 
dispatch services was $38,157. The County, per the new adopted policy, was open 
to providing a subsidy to Hughson Fire for the percentage of the cost covering the 
unincorporated area of the Fire Protection District (or a calculated $2,245) making 
the District responsible for the remainder.  
 
The County was hopeful that the City would be willing to help the District with the 
now annual contribution from the realized decrease in allocation for police dispatch 
services (a decrease from $122,081 to $85,458). This item was discussed at 
multiple City/Fire 2+2 meetings and although the City was open to considering 
assisting the Fire District in year one to soften the blow, City staff didn’t believe that 
subsidizing the District annually was a good long term practice as it will impact the 
City’s ability to fund other General Fund needs. At that time, it was shared that the 
City Manager was working with the Fire Chief and County staff to revisit the cost 
estimate provided to review the population statistics used for Hughson since it 



appeared to overstate the portion in the incorporated area and understate the 
portion in the unincorporated area of the Hughson Fire Protection District service 
boundary. Subsequent to that City Council meeting, the City Manager and Fire 
Chief provided more accurate population statistics for use in determining the cost 
allocation for fire dispatch services and ultimately Stanislaus County provided a 
revised cost figure.  In summary, based on more accurate population statistics, the 
District’s allocated cost for dispatch services for fire was $38,157 of which $24,791 
was associated with the incorporated area and $13,366 with the unincorporated 
area—the latter eligible for the County subsidy as previously described. 
 
Hughson Fire Protection District Funding Request of the City of Hughson 
 
On June 8, 2016, the City/Fire 2+2 received an update on the allocated cost for 
emergency dispatch services for fire from SR 911.  At that time, the revised figure 
and County policy for subsidies for fire agencies was discussed.  Later that 
evening, the Hughson Fire Protection District Board of Directors considered and 
adopted its preliminary budget and took into account this additional annual cost of 
$24,791 as well as the optional subsidy from Stanislaus County for the $13,366.  
Per discussion at City/Fire 2+2, and before any request for funding was brought 
back to the Hughson City Council for consideration, City representatives asked the 
District to determine if they could absorb the full amount during their budget 
preparation.  Furthermore, City representatives indicated that they would be willing 
to bring this to the full City Council as a one-time funding request once they had 
made that determination.  As part of their budget preparation, the District 
determined that it could absorb 50% of the SR911 allocated cost for emergency 
dispatch services for fire and requested that the City consider one-time funding for 
the remaining 50% or $12,395.50.  The District is hopeful that in future years, that 
they can plan and budget accordingly to cover the full amount going forward.  In a 
subsequent action of the Hughson Fire Protection District Board of Directors, they 
also approved submitting a formal request for a County subsidy for the allocated 
cost associated with the unincorporated area of their service area. 
 
A representative from the Hughson Fire Protection District will be in attendance at 
the City Council meeting to discuss this item, their approved budget and answer 
any questions raised.  A copy of the Hughson Fire Protection District approved 
budget will also be provided in hard copy at the meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The City of Hughson Adopted Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 did 
not include funding for this request—since the actual amount was uncertain.  If the 
City Council approves funding as requested, City staff can incorporate this item in 
the final budget addendum that is scheduled to go before the Hughson City 
Council in the upcoming month.  The City’s Adopted Preliminary Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2016-2017 does not contain capacity in the General Fund to accommodate 
this request.  If approved, City staff will determine if it can be accommodated or 
request a one-time use from reserves if necessary. 



Planning Commission Minutes         August 16, 2016 
 

 
All documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item 
on this Agenda are available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

 

1 

 

  

MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2016 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Chair Alan McFadon 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Chair Alan McFadon 
    Vice Chair Mark Fontana 
    Commissioner Julie Ann Strain 
  
   Absent:  Commissioner Ken Sartain 
 
Staff Present:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
    Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk    
 
FLAG SALUTE:  Chair Alan McFadon 

 
   
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 

No Public Comments.  
 
2. PRESENTATIONS: 
 

2.1: Presentation: California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Refresher. 
 

Director French provided a refresher presentation on the California 
Environmental Quality Act for the Planning Commission. 

 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



Planning Commission Minutes         August 16, 2016 
 

 
All documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item 
on this Agenda are available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

 

2 

3. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 17, 2016. 
 
FONTANA/STRAIN 3-0 motion passes to approve the Minutes as presented.   
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.  
 
5. INFORMATION ITEMS:  
 

5.1: City Development Update.  
 

Director French announced the resignation of Planning 
Commissioner Karen Minyard, and reminded Commissioners of the 
vacancy to be filled; the application deadline is September 6, 2016. 

  
6. CORRESPONDENCE:      NONE. 
 
7. COMMENTS: 
 

7.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

Community Development Director: Updated Commissioners on 
the construction of Tully Road 
and Whitmore Avenue by PG & 
E set to begin August 29, 2016. 
PG&E will relocate the gas 
transmission line vaults under 
the intersection to along 
Whitmore Avenue adjacent to 
the mobile home park. Existing 
vaults will then be 
decommissioned. PG & E will 
then construct the rest of the 
unfinished portion of Tully 
Road.  

 
Council approved a 4-way stop 
at Tully Road and Whitmore 
Avenue, which will be re-
evaluated after the completion 
of the Tully Road 
improvements.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes         August 16, 2016 
 

 
All documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item 
on this Agenda are available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

 

3 

The first phase of Hatch 
Avenue and Santa Fe 
signalization project is 
complete.  BNSF must now 
relocate the existing crossing 
arms to commence Phase 2 of 
the project. 

 
  City Clerk: NONE. 
  
  City Attorney:    NONE. 
 
 7.2: Commissioner Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
  No Comments. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Chair McFadon adjourned the meeting at 7:22 P.M.  
 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
ALAN MCFADON, Chair  
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 


	1.1 Agenda 8-22-16
	AGENDA
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:  NONE.
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.
	6. NEW BUSINESS:   NONE.
	7. CORRESPONDENCE:
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE.


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers
	Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:

	3.1 Minutes and Coversheet 8-8-2016
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:   NONE.
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.
	6. NEW BUSINESS:
	7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE.
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE.


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers

	3.2 Warrant Register Cover Sheet 8-22-16
	3.2a Warrants Register 8-22-16
	3.3 Civil Grand Jury 16-15GJ - Stanislaus County Building Study SR
	3.3a Stanislaus County Civil Grand Jury Building Study Report 16-15GJ 8-22-16
	3.3b City response to GJ response-Stanislaus County Building Study 8-22-16
	3.3c Hughson Building Detail Reports Attach A 8-22-16
	3.4 Request Alcohol HS 8-22-16
	4.1 City Treasurer Appointment - 8-22-16
	The City Treasurer is intended to provide another level of checks and balance to the City's financial practices.
	The essential function of the City Treasurer is to monitor and safeguard the City’s cash and investments through oversight of City processes, reporting, and practices. The City Treasurer ensures the City’s financial viability and that proper financial...
	The typical duties performed by the City Treasurer include but are not limited to the following:
	 Prepare the Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested.
	 Certify that total cash on deposit and invested as is reported on the Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested.
	 Identify appropriate adjustments to the Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested and verify and sign the report.
	 Attest, in the Treasurer's Report of Cash on Deposit and Invested that the City has cash on hand for six months.
	 Attend quarterly City Council, Finance Committee and/or other meetings when required to provide information on treasury or investment matters.
	 Understand, follow and review the City’s Statement of Investment Policy.
	 Work with the City Manager, Finance Director and Finance Manager on appropriate review of financial and investment matters, to include City Council agenda items.
	 Recommend appropriate investment or financial matters when warranted to the City Manager and/or City Council.
	 Works with the Finance Director on presentation of financial information to ensure that material is clear, concise, and easily understandable for Council and residents in their review.
	Graduation from a four year college and post-graduate work in accounting, financial or management processes is preferred but not required. Experience in an administrative position involving finance, investments, budgeting, or similar financial matters...
	On June 27, 2016, the Hughson City Council accepted the resignation of John Padilla effectively immediately as he accepted a full time Grants and Communications Coordinator position with the Patterson Unified School District.  The City Council and Cit...
	Fiscal Impact:
	As established by City Council Resolution No. 87-28, the City Treasurer receives $100 per month, in the form of a stipend, for performance of the required duties.  These funds are included as part of the annual budget process.

	4.2 Hughson Fire Emergency Dispatch Funding Request SR
	7.1 PC Minutes 8-16-16
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:
	3. NEW BUSINESS:
	4. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.
	5. INFORMATION ITEMS:
	6. CORRESPONDENCE:      NONE.

	City of Hughson
	PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
	City Hall Council Chambers


